
U.S. Department of Labor Mine Safety and Health Administration 
201 12th Street South 
Arlington, Virginia 22202-5452 

I-AUG 1 l 20-J7 

MEMORANDUM FOR PATRICIAW. SILVEY 
Deputy Assistant Secretary for 
Mine Safety and Health .u.n1T11n 

THROUGH: KEVIN G. STRICKLIN 
Acting Administrator fa 
Metal and Nonmetal Mine 

FROM: 
Director, Office of Assessm 

SUBJECT: Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA) 
Office of Accountability Review, Metal and Nonmetal Southeast 
District, Birmingham, Alabama Field Office, 

Introduction 

This memorandum summarizes the Office of Accountability (QA) review of the subject 
District Office, Field Office, and mine. This review included MSHA field activities; level 
of enforcement; conditions and practices at the mine; Field Accompanied Reviews 
(FARs); Office Reviews (ORs) and MSHA supervisory and managerial oversight. The 
accountability review also involved evaluations to determine if there were any issues in 
areas commonly identified during Agency internal reviews of MSHA's actions following 
past mine disasters. 

Purpose 

The purpose of this accountability review is to determine whether MSHA enforcement 
policies, procedures and guidance are followed consistently; and to assess whether 
mission critical enforcement activities are accomplished effectively. The accountability 
review also identifies areas for improvement and the subsequent implementation of 
effective corrective actions to address any identified issues. 



Overview 

The OA Specialists Jerry Kissell and Mark Odum (Review Team) conducted this review 
of Metal and Nonmetal's Southeast District and the Birmingham, Alabama Field Office 
in accordance with the annual accountability review plan schedule. The Review T earn 
conducted the on-site portion of the review from 
11111- The review focused on inspection activities conducted in FY 2016 and t e 
inspection activities conducted in the first quarter of FY 2017 and included supervisory 
oversight activities, FARs and ORs and Hazard Complaints for FY 2016. The review 
concentrated on two Regular Safety and Health Inspections (E01), Event Nos.-
and of the , ID No. 

The OA selected the for review due to it being a 
large surface operation and azardous condition complaints during FY 
2016. 

Mine Visit 

The Review Team accompanied the Field Office Supervisor, the Assistant District 
Manager (Enforcement) and two inspectors to the mine on-• as part of 
a Spot Safety and Health Inspection (E16). During this visi~m 
evaluated general conditions at the mine; assessed whether conditions at the mine 
correspond with enforcement levels documented in the inspection reports reviewed; and 
observed work practices at the mine site. 

The operation is a surface crushed and broken !Jiine located in_ 
The mine employs approxima e y miners worki~ 

~perday, eight-hours per shift, seven ays per week producing an 
average of-annually. Crushed - is mined with drilling and 
blasting tec~rial is then loaded inlo""hi'ul trucks and transferred to the 
Optical Sorter. After sorting, the raw material is transferred by conveyers to the 
processing plants where it is processed and made ready for commerce. 

The inspection group observed the quarry operations and areas of the number two 
processing plant. Observations in the quarry included: 

• the mining cycle; 
• high wall conditions; 
• haul road conditions; and 
• the berms along the roadways and warning and traffic signage. 
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Additional observations in the quarry included: 

• the contractor conducting the overburden stripping process; 
• the stripping area and material dump area; 
• the vehicle maintenance area; and 
• the quarry laydown area (storage). 

Equipment observed in the quarry included: 

• the Caterpillar 390-F Excavator; 
• 2 - Caterpillar 775-G Haul Trucks; 
• Caterpillar 773-G Haul Truck; 
• Caterpillar D-8 Dozer; and 
• the Optical Sorter and conveyors. 

The observations in the number two processing plant included: 

• the turntable ore sorter tower; 
• 4 conveyor belts; 
• the screw grade feeder; 
• the #5 rock dryer area; 
• the #26 Raymond Mill; 
• the ACT Mill room; 
• travelways; 
• audible warning system for conveyor start up; and 
• the wet plant and slurry plant control room. 

Other observations included: 

• housekeeping; 
• equipment guarding; 
• walkway maintenance; 
• communications; 
• break rooms; 
• examination records; 
• safety talks with miners; and 
• inspectors' pre and post inspection discussions with the operator and miners' 

representatives. 

As a result of the inspection, the inspectors issued seven enforcement actions. (See 
Attachment D) 
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Review Results 

This accountability review revealed positive findings in several areas, including the 
following: 

1. For the E01 inspection reports, notes and documentation were organized, clear 
and concise, and included pictures of violations. 

2. Inspection notes documented observations of work practices, mining cycles 
observed, and safety talks conducted with miners. . 

3. The supervisor exceeded the minimum FARs required by completing three 
additional FARs and three additional ORs for the period reviewed. 

4. The supervisor conducted regular staff meetings with inspectors and 
documented topics covered. The meetings provided inspectors with pertinent 
enforcement information and updates and reviews of MSHA policy and 
procedures. 

5. During the mine visit, inspectors conducted safety talks with miners. 

This accountability review identified one issue cited below that required a corrective 
action plan. A corrective action plan from the District Manager addressing the identified 
issue is attached to this report. (See Attachment A - District Corrective Action Plan and 
Attachment B- Issues) 

The District and the Review T earn analyzed the findings identified during this review to 
determine the root causes of the issue. 

• Root Cause: 

The Review T earn identified and discussed with the District personnel inspection and 
procedural best practices as described in the Metal and Nonmetal General Inspection 
Procedures Handbook. A general outline of discussion topics is included in an 
attachment to this memorandum. (See Attachment E) 

The OA compared enforcement levels of the mine with the Field Office, District, and 
national averages. The mine had a significant and substantial (S&S) rate of 21 percent 
during FY 2016, compared to the Field Office S&S rate of 21 percent; a district S&S rate 
of 27 percent; and the national S&S rate of 24 percent in FY 2016. Based on the review 
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and observations made during the mine visit, enforcement levels were appropriate for 
the existing mining conditions and work practices. 
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Attachments 

A. District Corrective Action Plan 

8. Issues 

C. Office of Accountability Checklist 

D. Citations issued during this review 

• 56.11001 
• 56.11001 

• 56.20003{a) 
• 56.14107(a) 
• 56.14201 {b) 
• 56.20003(a) 

• 56.20003(a) 

E. Discussion Topics 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District I Southeast Field Office Birmingham, AL I Mine ID Date 

Attachment A - District Corrective Action Plan 

~.~:---~, 
t:.s. Oe.p:trtment of Labor Min.:: Safety and Heahh Administmti,1n 

1030London Drive l .. 
Suite 400 I · .,. 'Birmingham, AL 3521 J 

. ~ ' 

May 16. 2017 

MF'vfORANDlJM FOR: TFD SMffIJ 
Supervisor, Office: ofAC(-Ountabilily 

THROUGH: Mlln'in Lichtcofels 
J>..-pUlJ Administmtor or . 
\tioe Safotv & llcalth 
Arlington, VA 

I-ROM: Sam11el Pierce -
District M1111agcr, Sciuthcalit District 
Birmingham, AL 

SUBJEC'l : District Corrective Action Plan for Office: of 
Accountability Re\oiCW Birmingham, AL 

·nus is a response to the r.:view conducted by the Ofl1ce ofAcco1mtabilit)' from_ 
■■I-ll•■••■■ at1kBinningham Alabama field office. The rh~ 
r,"'·1e\\ 1denttfied one deficiency which is required 10 be addr~sed l>y the District. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District I Southeast Field Office Birmingham, AL Mine ID Date 

• PROPOSED CORRECTIVE ACTIONS; 

• OFFICE OR POSITION RESPONSIBLE FOR IMPLEMENTING THE 
CORRECTIVE ACTIONISl: 

o Supervisor for Special Investigations 

• TIMEFRAME FOR COMPLETION OF EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

Training for all inspectors and supervisors has been conducted through a 
conference call with the District Manager. 

• METHOD FOR DETERMINING SUCCESS: 

One quarter after the implementation of ihe corrective actions the SE District wi l! 
export the PKW log from MSIS and conduct a thorough review of all PKW's and 
determine if compliance with guidelines. policies. and procedures have been 
achieved. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District I Southeast I Field Office I Birmingham, Al I Mine ID I Date 

• A DESCRIPTION OF THE DOCUMENTATION THAT WILL 
DEMONSTRATE CLOSURE OF THE CORRECTIVE ACTION: 

The District Manager will send a memorandum to Ted Smith Supervisor, Office of 
Accountability, through Marvin Lichtenfels, Deputy Administrator for Metal Non 
Metal Mine Safety and Health. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District I Southeast I Field Office I Birmingham, AL I Mine ID I Date 

Attachment B - Issues 

Findings showed: 

Requirements: Special Investigations Procedures Handbook, PH0S-1-4, page 4-2, states 
that for "each citation and/or order required by MSHA Policy to be reviewed, a Possible 
Knowing/Willful Violation Review Form, MSHA Form 7000-20, shall be completed." 
Page 4-3 states that "within 30 calendar days of the date of issuance of the 
citation/order a determination must be made by the DM (with the assistance of the SSI) 
whether to initiate an investigation or take no further action." 
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United States Department of labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District I Southeast I Field Office I Birmingham, AL I Mine ID Date 

Attachment C - Office of Accountability Check.list 

Determine if complete and thorough E01 inspections are being conducted and /or if1 
· policies and procedures were properly followed. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

2. Determine if documentation for inspections is complete and thorough. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D · Comments Below D 

Determine if citations and orders issued during previous inspections were property 
3. evaluated for gravity, negligence, level of enforcement, number of persons affected, 

and supported by documentation. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Evaluate inspector(s) examination of required records and postings for compliance with 4 
· applicable standards. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Evaluate the inspector(s) physical examination of the active working areas of the mine5 
· and inspection of all mining cycles. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

6. Evaluate the inspector(s) on-site contaminant assessment and documentation. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District I Southeast I Field Office I Birmingham, AL I Mine ID I Date 

Evaluate inspector(s) examination of electrical equipment, transformer stations, and/or7 
· electrical circuits. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Determine if adequate close-out conferences are being conducted at the end of each8 
· inspection. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Determine if Possible KnowingNVillful (PKW) Forms are processed according to9 
· agency policy and procedures. 

Evaluate 103(i) spot inspection (E02) reports for the office/district being reviewed for 
10. compliance with agency policies and procedures, including compliance with time 

frames and separating E02 inspections from other events. 

Adequate D Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below 00 
Not reviewed as a part of this review. The Field Office does not have any mines in 103(i) 
status. 

Determine if Hazard Complaint inspections/investigations are being conducted 11 
· according to policy and procedures. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Determine if supervisors are monitoring inspector time and activity to ensure proper12 
· use of time, including off-shift and weekend work, by all inspectors. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 
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United States Deparbnent of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District I Southeast I Field Office I .Birmingham. AL I Mine ID I Date 

Are required Field Accompanied Reviews (FARs), Office Reviews (ORs) and 

13. sup_ervisodry followd-up r?eviews being conducted and documented according to agency 
po1icy an proce ures . 

Determine if a 104(d) tracking system is in place and being kept current at the office 14 
· being reviewed. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

15. Determine if the Mine Files are legible, up to date, and reviewed by supervisors. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

16. Determine if supervisors are visiting active mines. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Review documentation of staff meetings/safety meetings to determine their 17 
· effectiveness and relevance to current issues and the Agency's mission. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Determine if Assistant District Manager is conducting the required second level reviews 
18. and holding supervisors accountable for oversight of Office Reviews and Field 

Accompanied Activity Reviews. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District I Southeast I Field Office I Birmingham, AL I Mine ID Date 

Determine if district management personnel are reviewing work products and reports19 
· for accuracy and completeness. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Determine if managers and supervisors are using required standardized reports to 20 
· review critical data relevant to inspections and investigations. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Determine if Districts, when required, are conducting in-depth accountability reviews in 
21. compliance with agency policy and procedures including follow-up to determine the 

effectiveness of corrective actions. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Is Information, including methane liberation, being entered into the MSHA Standardized22 
· Information System (MSIS) accurately and in a timely manner? 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

_ ~eterm_ine if inspectors have sufficient equipment and supplies to conduct thorough 23 
inspections. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Evaluate the overall condition of the mine relative to the level of enforcement24 
· documented in previously completed inspections. 

Adequate [K] Corrective Action Ne~ed D Comments Below D 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

. District I South Eastern l Field Office I Birmingham, AL l Mine ID Date 

Determine if inspectors have an understanding of when a violation of Section 10_3(a) for 
25. Advance Notice occurs and whether appropriate citations are issued for Advance 

Notice. 

Adequate [[] Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Determine if the management resource tracking tool is being used to track resources26 
· regarding Special Investigations. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

27. Determine if retraining of supervisors, inspectors, and specialists is being tracked. 

Adequate [Kl Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 

Determine if supervisors are rotating the mine assignments annually among inspectors 28 
· assigned to their field office. 

Adequate 00 Corrective Action Needed D Comments Below D 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District Southeast Field Office Binningham, AL I Mine ID Date 

Attachment D - Citations issued during the mine visit 

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Deoa"""nt of Labor · 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

;. Date Mo 0a Yr 2. Time (24 H(. Clod\) 3. Citation/ 
Oroer Number 

6. Mine 
(Contractor) 

Ba. Wriifen NQtiC,e (103g) f 
The ladder access to the S-9 Conveyor c;at~lk was covered up by rock spillage 
and blocked by a water hose . This condition created a slip or trip hazard to 
p ersons which can lead to serious injury . 

A.Healttl [J B. Sel;tlon C. Part/Seaion ot 
S8retyQ of Ad TlUe 30 CFR 56.1 1001 
Other□ 

Sedlon luollOII 

,o.Gravtry: 

A. ll)jury or Illness (has) (a): No ~ O Unlikely 62i Reasonably Likely 0 Highly Ul<ely D 0ccurn,c1 D 
B. Injury or illne.a could rea-

be ~ ·.to be: No Lost Worl<daY$ O LostWOll«!a),$Of Reslric:led D1'ly 621 ·Permanently Disabling 0 
C. ~ignificant and Substantial: 

Yes 0 00'1 
n . Negllgenca (c!>ed< .one) A None O B. Low Q C. Mode,ae ~ D. H)gh Q E. Recldess Oislegard 0 
12. Type of Action I04a 13. Type•9f Issuance (che!d< cwie) c~ Ii!] oruer□ Salegu.an:t O Wrklen Notice C 
14 . Initial Action - ----+.,_F.,_,D,.,a,.sted,,,,__. _ _•Mo De Yr 

A. cttaoon~er □ ~c. sat.guanf □ 

: 5. Alea or Equipment 

15. Teonlnallon Due Mo Oa YrIA. ·Dal>I IB. nne (24 Hr. Clocl<} 

17. A..--tion to Te,mfnete 

18. Terminated IA. O•te MoOa Yt I · 
• o ~· Time (2-4 Hr, Clod< 

l 9 . Type of Inspection 20. Event Numbe< 21. Pi'ima,yQJMm
(activity cods) £16 . p 

22. ARName 23. AR Number 

illSHA Fom, 7~ AfJf O8 (re-itsed) In acc0tclance·..,111e ......-011ll6 Small&u,iness Regulalory E~h"""8Adot 1·- . the Srnall BusinM5~ h~ 
~ a Nalionaf Small~ and~ Rttguletoy Omtluocmen and 10 R~·F~• 8oard•to~~fromomal ~~ traderai ~ 
,nro=aaions. Tile Clm0ud1rnml·11MU1111y -emcrt:emenfadMdes an<1Mes eacn~~ID-llU--. •--ID........., en lie 
.,,.,,•.,,.,.,nt3<UonsalMSl1A,)OUffl")ICll1-«MI-REG-fAIR(•-~:M7).or-NOmlx•:1111•11ratSmal--, Offiotot ...Hnona1~. -31d 
SIIMI. SW MC 2120, WUl\ngkl,,; DC 20418. Pf- ncile, - • lllltyour rlgllt 10.a~wi!l> l!)t On--, i& in- lO--,W,.Syou rrey'-, ~ 
.,.e nghl !o"°""""-•aoopro-""'1ilties and "°"in a "'"'"'1g belote ~ F-.. Mina S8f!,ly "'1d H°'"" Relliewl:ommllslon, · 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District Southeast Field Office Binningham, AL Mine ID Date 

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Departmentoflabor 
Mine Safeo/ and Health Administration 

Section 1- \/lolation Da1a 

1. Date Mo D& Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 3. Citation/ -
Olde<Number 

5. Operator 

7. Mine ID 
(Conlrador) 

88. Written Notice 1 -Rock build up in excess of 20" was observed on the S-16 Headpulley work 
platform, in excess of 18 "on the access platform below and on over the toe 
boards at the S- 1 Cone Feed Conveyor catwalk. This condition creates an unsafe 
access hazard in which rock can fall onto persons on the platform below the S-
16 headpulley platform and a slip, trip or fall hazard to persons access i ng 
the area. Serious injuries can be received from falling rock and/or slip, trip 
or fall. Maintenance personnel access this area to perform routine maintenance 
activities . 

See Contnuatlon Form(MSIIA Fonn 7000-.la) 0 
9. Violation A. HeallhC B. Section C. Part/Section of 

SafetyB of Ad Tille 30 CFR 56.11001 
Olhef 

Seciion 11-fflspedo(s Evaluation 

10. Gravity: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) Qs): No Lil<elihood D Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely ~ Highly Likely D . Oa:ufl9d D 
B. Injury or ilness could rea-

sons be expected to be: No Lost Wollldays 0 Lost WOfkdays Or Restricted Duty @ Pennanently Disab5ng 0 Fatal 0 
C. Significanl and Substantial: D. Numberof Persons Atreded:Yes~ No □ 001 

11. Neglig911C8 (Ched( one} A. None O B. low 0 C. Moderate ~ D.HiQh D E. Reddess Dis,egard 0 

12. Type of Adion I04a 13. Type of l&&uance (ched( one) Clta&n 0 Order O Safeguald O Written Notice 0 
14. Initial Action E. Citation/ f . Dated . Mo Oa Yr 

A Clalion O B. Older O C. s•guaro O 0. Written Notice O Oroer Number 

15. Area or Equipment 

16. Termination Due Mo 0a YrI IA DIie B. lme (24 Hr. Clod<) 

59alon lll-Ten111nallon AC11on -
. 1-7, Adion to. Termi11ai. . 

18. TerminatadIA. Dale Mo 0a Yr IB. Tome (24 Hr. CIOdc 

Section 11/~S>pU,m Data 

19. Type_of lnapedion 20. Event Nunmer 21 . Pfinary or Mill 
(activity code) EI6 p 

2.2. ARName 23. AR Number -
MSHA Form 7000,3. Af)I Oil (,..;,«J) In accor«13ncewt1Jl lhe pn,visMs of Ille s.-r.118usMss R~Enfon;emefll Falme$S Acl ol 1996, Die Small 8ueinea A4-hM -
@$tabllsned a Nallonal Small ~a,,o~Regt.la10ly Omt><lclsman ana 10 Regioqal Falmou Boards to rectM! comtllMts tom smaa--- agency 
••--· ThoOrn-...MV1Ual)f..-ao10«:••noantactM!ieoan<11111eSea<:1>aoen<:¥'S.....,,,.;-1osma1tlu8iness. Wyct1 ...,..10c:cmmontonale 
e-actions ofMSHA. )QI mill' ca111.aeg.RfG-fAlR (1-ee&-734-3247), or-llle Ombuclsman atSinai_,_Allffinisnlion, Ofllc:eollhe liaiiora OmllUIJsman, 409 3rd 
S11eft, SW MC 2120. Wasl11rQtM. OC 20416. PteNe noca, -·O'lalyourligllt 10 !ileacomment wit!> the~is in addilion lo eny Oll)e( rq,ts )<)U mayhave, il<:ll,difl9 
!ha right to co,,- cila1ions and proposed penalties ano obllin • hNf1nO belOl9 Ille Feder.II 11111\e Saft>tyaoo Heil1tl Re.few Conlmission. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District Southeast Field Office Birmingham, Al I Mine ID I Date 

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of labOr 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Sedlofl 1-Vt04allon Oa!a 

1. Date Mo Da Yr 2. Troe (24 Hr. Clock) 
3. Cimionl -Orde<Number 

4. Served To 

6. Mine 

(Contractor) 

8a. Written Notice (103g) LJ 
Housekeeping is not being maintained in t he walkways on the 2nd deck of 

the turntable. An approximate 20 by 20 foot area is covered with an 
accumulation of rock and fine spillage up to approximately 6 inches deep. The 
area is access to the tail pulleys of 3 different conveyors that require 
lubrication approxi mately twice per month . The condition exposes miners to a 
slip and fall hazard likely to result i n strains, sprains and contusions . 

Standard 56. 20003a was cited I 

See COllUnualion Foml (MSHA Form 7000.33) 0 
9. Voolation A. Health C) a.Section C. Pan/Section of 

Safely□ ofAd Tille 30CFR 56.20003a 
Other□ 

Section 11-lnspectCII'• ijon 

1o.Gravity: 
A. Injury or tunes, (has) (is): No Likelihood 0 Unlikely @ R~sonably Likely 0 Highly Ukely D Occurred 0 
B. Injury or ~lne$& could rea-

sonably be eJ!peded to be: No Lost Worl<days O Lost W01kdays OrRfllricted Duty QI PennanenUy Dlsabfng D Fatal O 
C. Significant and Substantial: Yes O No 621 ID.Number of PetSOnS Affeded: 00 l 

11. NegQgence (checic one) A None O B. Low Q C. Moderate O D. High @ E. Reck1e9s Oiaregaro 0 

12. Type of Action 104a 13. Type of Issuance (ched one) Citation 2J Order O Safeguard D Wrilten Notice 0 
14. Initial Action E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Oa Yr 

A. Citation O 8. Order O C. Sllfeguard O D. Written Notice O Order Number 

15. Area Of Equipment 

17. Actionto Terminate Housekeeping has been performed, abati ng the citation 

-
19. Type of Inspection 2.1 . Prina,y or Mi8 

(aciMty code) 
M 

22. ARName 23. AR Number -
MSHA Fenn 7000-3. Ap,08 (revised) lnaocordaOOewith lhe ~ollhe Small Bu.- R~EntJrooment FeimessA<tol 1996. the &mil 8uslnessAOnmnlionhas 
861abliahed a Netiorwl Small Business and AgriClitute Regulatory Ombudomon and 10 Regional Faimlm Boaros lo rec:81'18 comments fnlln smaJ llusinessesall<>IA 1-ral agency
enlwotmont-. TheOmbucll....,.annuallyeYal_____MCl>aoer,cysr~b>-- •)'OYwll~IOcomm-,ton f,o 

enlon::emenl acllonsofMSHA. you maycaft1.a88-REG-FAIR(1-883-7:l-4-324n orW!lleU>eomllUdsrnanat Smal&slnessAdmilislfalion, OfflCe c#tlleNl((Nf OmlludSman, 409 3RI 
Street, SN MC 2120, Wasll~. DC 20416. Pl9ase note, hONeller, Iha! ,p.x righlto lile acomment ..«II the ~is In eddiloll to anyOChe,tlghts )OU mayhave. illduclng 
Vle right10 conl8st ci1aOons and PIOfX>Sed per,allies and oblain a hearing belue the F-..iMtMl Safety and Hellllh Relllew Conwnlssion. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District Southeast Field Office Binningham, AL Mine ID Date 

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Deoartment of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

3. Citation/ 
Order Number 

5. Operator 

-is provided for the end of the rotating counterweight shaft for 
the BC07 conveyor . The end of the shaft is approximately 4 feet high and 
within approximately 1 foot of the railing . There is a grea se point on the 
adjacent walkway the requires lubrication approximately twice per month . This 
condition exposes miners to an entanglement hazard likely t o result i n 
crushing/amputati on injuries to the fingers or hands. 

Standa.rd 56 .14107a was 

See Con11ooallon Forni (MSHA Fo1m70Q0.3a) !7 

=a 
9. VIOiation A. Health 0 B. Sedlon C. Part/Section of 

ofAct Trtle 30CFR 56.14107a 

Secliofl ll-lnspedlJ,'1 Evaluation 
10 . Gravity: 

A. lnjllfY or llloess (has) (is): No Lillellhood O Unlikely 2J Reasonably Likely D Highly Ukely O Occurred 0 
B. Injury or Illness could rea-

son be exP&Cted to be: No Lost Wor1<days O Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duly 0 Permanentl'fOisablng Ii!] Fatal 0 
C. Significant and Substantial: O. Number of Persons Affected: 001 

11. Negligence (died< one) A.None 0 B. low 0 D. Higll Q e. Reddess Oismgard D 
12. Type of Action l 04a 13. Type of lssuanoe (check one) Citation~ Order O Safeguard CJ Written Notice :J 
14. Initial Action E. Cilallonl F. Dated Mo Oa Yr 

A. Cbtlon O B. Order O c. Safeguard O D. Written Notioe O Order Number 

15. Area or Equipment 

16. Tormlnation Due IA. Date js. Tme (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section ID- Terminalion Adion -
17. Action to Tenninate The shaft was guar ded, abating the citation. 

18. Terminated' A. Date MoOa Yr 

SecllonlV-AulDcnamdSystern Dala -19. Type of Inspection 21 . Primary 01 Mill 
(activity code) M 

22.ARName 23.ARNl.fflber -
MSHA Form 7~. ,V,,Otl (rewed) Ill aocon:lance - Illep,ovtSIOllS of tile 5mall BuSltless Regulaloly Enfo<ternent Fairness ACt o/ 1996, the Small BulinesaAdmir>S1lllli0n has 
eOlablislled a Nafor.al Small eu.ines. andAgrioulll.We Revui,,to<y Ombt.lelsmao ana 10 RegiOnal Faimess Boa<ds ID"'°""" commenl$ from smallbu$- abotll federal agency 
OM>ICement actfons. The 0-omanonnualiy evaJt/31JoS - adi,,_ and r,,i,,s aach _,cy'a,_- 10 .....,.-.., l'IO<J wkh fo comment on the 
anblO!lmellr aatonso/MSHA, you .,.ycaH 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-e88-734-3247). orwrtll tile Ombudsman atSmal BuslnessAdminiscration. Offlceolllle NatiooatOmbud.vnan, 409 3nl 
Sltttt, SW MC 2120, W&shlngton. 0C 20416. P1aese note, -•ttl3t your right to file a commenl Mtt> lhe Ombudsman is in addition ID 9f1)1 oll>etrighls you may tu,,.,e, lnckJding 
tie right to comest Cltatlons ard ptoP()Sed penallles and obtain a '-Ing belom lhe Fild8ral Mne Safsly and Health Rev.,.. CollWllmion. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District Southeast Field Office Birmingham, AL Mine ID Date 

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine 8afety and Health Administration 

1. Date Mo Da Yr 2. T,me (24 Hr. Clod<} 3. Citation/ 

4. Served To 5. Operatot 
OtderNumber -

6. Mine 

(Contractor) 

or audibl e war ning is provided f or the BC06 and BC07 
conveyors . The audible alarm at the head pulley of BC06 was not functioning 
and no other alarm could be seen or heard from this area before the conveyors 
went int o motion. The conveyors are controlled by the system stop and start 
automatically. This condition exposes miners that may be working on or around 
the conveyor to an entangl ement hazard likely to result in 
crushing/di smemberment injuries should the conveyor start unexpectedly. 

9. V10Jation A. Health 0
SafelyB
Other 

B. Section 
ofAct 

C. Part/Section of 
Tdle30CFR 

See Coruiooallon Form (MSHA Foml 7000-38) 

56.14201b 

0 

Section 11-lnspedo(a 

10. Gravity: 

A. Injury or Illness (has) (is): No LikelillOO<I C, Unlikely Ii!) Reasonably Likely 0 
8 

·~i!,or!":ss could:~: No Lost Workday& O Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duty O 

tfighly I.Jl(ely 0 Occurred 0 
Permanently Disabling li2! Fatal 0 

C. Significant and Substantial: Yes O No 0 0. Number ofPelSQfl5Affected: 001 

11. Negligence (check one) A. None 0 B.Low 0 C. Moderate 0 D.Hlgn 0 E. Red<less Disregard 0 
12. Type of Action 104a 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation @ Order 0 Safeguard O Wrftten Notice 0 
14. Initial Adion E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr 

A Citatioo O B. Order O C. Safeguard Q D. Written Notice O Older Number 

15. Alea or Equipment 

Mo De Yr16. Tenninat ion Due A . DateI lB. Time (24 Hr. Clock) -
17. Actioo to Terminate The start up alarm was repaired and tested, abating the citation. 

18. Terminated IA. Date Mo Da Yr IB. l1ms (24 Hr. Cloct< 

Section tV~Systern Olla -19. Type of Inspection 21 . Primary or Mill 
(activity code) M 

22.AR Name 23. AR Number -
MSHA Form 7000-3. Aor08 (revised) In~-1he prowlslonsoftt-.. Smal Bu..,_ Regufalory £nb'cemen!F-Actof19'6, Ile SmallBuslneos-"'ior, haa 
escablishP.<l a Nafional Small Business and AgrictilOn Regulato,y Ombudsman and 10Rtgional Faim&9S Board, to IICeivt co""""'1b l'rcm st1lall --about leder!I "911"'¥ 
~ actiON. Th& Ombudsman annuall!/-onfot-1-ondralos eadl agency't reapo......,_ fo..,,.. _,_, Wyou_, IO comnent on '1e 
eoforOl!mffltacl>Om of MSHA, )® mayc:all 1--.ru:G-fAIR (1-68$-~247). OC'-lleClmbudsmaoatSmal Buai1195& Actrnnl6Uation, OOle of11le NaUona1 OmbllOsrnarl. 4093n! 
S!7ee!, SW MC 2120, WNhinQ!l)n. DC204t0. ~--"-,1111tyourllgl!I IOfllea W11111ef1110i!ll ltle~isiD addilioo 11:lasyolher~)OUmayha'II!, ~ 
lhe right IO coot.e.i citations and propooed peo111fes and -n a hearing t.me U>e Fednl - Safety and Heall!\ Rel/few Colmris$ion. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District Southeast Field Office Birmingham, AL Mine ID ..=J Date 

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Deoaitment ofLabor 
Mlne Safety and Health Administration 

1. Date Mo Da Yr 2. T1me /24 Hr. Clock) 3. Citatlo<V 
Order Number 

4. Se!VedTo 5. Operator 

6.Mlne 

(Contractor) 
8a. Written Notice (1 OOgJ 

Housekeeping is not being maintained in the walkway around the head 
pulley of the BC12 conveyor and the ladder way landing below. 1 to 3 inch 
rock and fine materi al has bui lt up on the walkways up to 27 inches high. 
Spillage is near the entry way to the conveyors and ladder ways that provi de 
access for miners to do lubrication appr oximately once per month . This 
condition exposes miners to a slip and fall hazard likely to cause injuries 
such as strains, sprains, and contusions. 

Standard 56.20003a was cited I 

see C-Ominualion Fenn (MSHA Fonn 7000-3.I) D 

=a 
9. Violation A. HeaNh 0 e. Section C. Parl/Section of 

otAa Tile30CFR 56.20003a 

Sediof>I~• Evaluation 

10. Gravity: 
A. Injury 01 l l!ness (has) (is): No Llkefihood Q Reasonably Ucely 0 Highly Likely CJ Occurred O 
B. Injury 01 Illness could rea-

sonablybe e ed to be: No Lost Workdays 0 ·Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duty @ Pennanenlly Disabling 0 Fatal D 
C. Signfficant and Substantial; 

Yes CJ No@ D. Number of Persons Affected: 001 
11. Negligence (check one) A. None 0 B.Low 0 C. Moderale D D. High 2j E. Reekles& Olsregatd 0 
12. Type of Action 104a 13. Type of Issuance (Cl1edc one) C.'taoon li!I Older O Safeguard O Written NotiGe 0 
14. lnilfal Adion E. Citation/ F. ~ted Mo Oa Yr 

A. Cilation O B. Order O C. Smguatd O D. Written Notice O Order Number 

15. Area or Equipment 

16. Tenninetion Due IA. Date je. ,.,,. (24 Hr. CIOcJ<) 

Sdonltl-Temmali<rlAdlon -
11. Action to Terminate Housekeeping has been performed, abating the citation 

18. TerminatedIA. MoOa Yr 

SedbllV-AUCDmaled -
19. Type ot Inspection 21. Primaryor MIii 

(actMly code) M 
22. AR Name 23. AR Number -
MSHA Fenn 7000.3. A.>-08(191/ised) In acx:onlancewilh Ille..-,.o,.,..Small-Regula(Dty E~ FunesaAclof1996, Ille Smalt Business Adrrinistra<ion has 
estabn8hed II Nallonal Small ilusnen lndAsricullure Re9"""°'Y°"111uda'nan and 10 Regiooal Fairneu Boenlo to ,_,.,comn,e,11$ from smal ~---
enl~ac-. TheOmbu<l<manaMual!y4MII....,. en-adMllesan<l,_eadlagency'sr~ to smsl.busmou. lf)"'UwlolttoCX>ITlffleftlcnllle 
enfoo:emeotactionsotMSHA, yQI maycall 1-a88-REG-FI\IR(1~734-3247), ormiletllo Ombwlmen at Smd llullnlssl\Omrlisnllon, OllloeotlleNatiOnat Qn1l:x,dsman, 409 3/d 
Street. 6W MC 2120. w.~. 0C 2CU16. Plea$el!Ole,_ , lllet.)'OCKl1ghl to llleaeomrntntwtln V.0-il ..-.10any-r1g111Byru ,nay-, lnd,Jdi~ 
lhe righl lo oontesf -·aod poposed penelties and oolBill a heeri<lg·-•meF-Mine Stlltly 1111d HNIII R-C<lmlnlssion. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District Southeast Field Office Birmingham, AL Mine ID Date 

Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
MineSafety and Health Administration ♦ 

Sacl!o, I-VI04ation Otta 

1. Date 2. nme (24 Hr. Cloek) 3. Ckalion/ -
0rderNll'Tlber 

4. Served To 

6. Mine 

Housekeeping is not being maintained in the area below the #26 Raymond 
mill. The floor of the workplace has a cone of fine material spilled 
approximately 4 f eet deep as well as muddy areas and standing water throµghout 
t he worlcplace . There are visible foot prints in the spillage. The material 
is extremely slick when wet on top of the concrete floor. This condition 
exposes the miners traveling thru t he area to a slip hazard likely to result 
i n strains, sprains, and contusions. -

See CanfnuaGan Form (MSIIA Fonn 7000-3a) 0 
9. lllolation A. Health0 B. Section C. Part/Sedion of 

of Act Tltte30 CFR 56.20003as=a 
Secdon ll-lnopeC101'1 

1 0. Gravity: 
A lnjuly or llne,s (h,s) (IS): No Ucelihood O Unlikely 0 Reasonably likely 5iiJ HghlyLikely O Occurred 0 
8. Injury or illness could rea

No Lost W0111days 0 lo$t WOll\oays Or Restricted Duty @ Parmanently Disabllng O Fatal 0sonably ~ e)IJ)ected to be: 
c. Significant Ind Substantial: D. Nt.mbe<' of Pe<sons Affected: OOlIYes 0 No □ 

11. Negligence (check one) A. None 0 B. Low 0 C. Moderate t;2j 0 . High O E. Recklllu 0isreganf 0 
12. Type of Adion 104a 13. Type of lsauonce (check one) Citation @ Order O Safeguard O Written Notice 0 
1 ~- lnitlaJ AdJon E. Citation/ 1110 De Yr 

A Citation O 8. Oroer O c. Sateguaro O 0. Writ1en Notice O Order lunber 

15.Area or Equipment 

MO Oa Yr 
~- Dote 

16. Termination Due I IB. Time (24 Hr. Cloc:I<) 

SOdion 111-Tennha:lal Aai0n -
17. Action lo Tennlnate 

18. TenninatedlA-n~ MoOa Yr I
• . u,nc 8. rwne (24 Hr. Clock 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Numbel 21. Primary or Mill 
(lldlwy code) · El 6 M 

22. ARName 23. AA Number -
MSl-iA Form 7001).3. Al)f 08 (revised) rn aecordanoev.iththe l)IO>'isionsol the Small 8-Regulamty€nrat,emeni Fai-Actol1-. lhe Small --Adi'nhiWalkonhas 
8Slallliahed a NatiOIIII Sln.u BusnessarclAQriallture Regulalor,/ Ombucltmoin a nd 10 Rogional Fairness 8oonll.,,....,,.com.-11,,,,, small --abol.C--. - _.:v 
enlOrcernent acllons. The Ombudsma~ IMIIIIY..al-~l- And ... oadlaoencv• ,_ns1.......to- - , _w1,h to canmenC on u,. 
•nforcament adioos of MSHA, you may call 1-aaa.REG-FAIR (1.e,a.~4 7). or - N Ombudaman at SmaR 8ualneu Admln"nlion• Office ol N ~ Ombud5,-,, 409 ~ 
Slnel. SW MC 2120. Waslll11g11>n. DC :W.16. --· - . ll>lll )QWriQM to Ne ocomme,,twi1h !lie ~isln_,_, -,yofler ~ youmayhlw. 1/ldUOnO 
lhe right lr:><Xrltesl citationsand~~8lld obl8ol • ~ before Ille F-lofne Salely end""""' Re\oiew C<ltrrnmicn. 
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United States Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Office of Accountability 

District Southeast I Field Office I Birmingham, AL Mine ID Date 

Attachment E - Discussion Topics 

Topics discussed with the district that do not require a corrective action plan: 

• Documentation of Enforcement Actions: In rare cases, for the enforcement actions 
issued during the E01s reviewed, negligence determinations documented in the notes 
could include more information to justify the determination. See Citation and Order 
Writing Handbook For Coal Mines and Metal and Nonmetal Mines, PH13-l-1(1), pages 
16-18 and Metal and Nonmetal General Inspection Procedures Handbook, PH13-IV-1 
(GIPH), pages 64-65 for reference. 

• Arrival and departure times for the E01 events reviewed were not always documented. 
See GIPH, page 60 for reference . 
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